
United Nations

GENERAL
ASSEMBLY
FORTY-SECONU SI<:SSI()N

Official Rl·l·tml.~·

SUMMAl'Y Rf<;CORD OF '1'HE 7th MEE'1'ING

Chairman: Mr. RI'l"l'hH (Panama)

CON'rENTS

THIRD COMMI'r'I'EE
7th meeting

held on
r'riday, 9 October 19U7

at 10 a.m.
New York

AGENDA ITEM 117: IMPL":Mf;NTA'1'ION OF THE PROGRAMME OE AC'rION FOR THE SECOND DECADE TO
COMBAT RACISM AND RACIAL DISCRIMINATION: REPORTS OF THE SECRETARY-GENERAL (continued)

AGENDA ITEM 911 IMPORTANCE OF THE UNIVERSAL REALIZATiON OF THE RIGHT OF PEOPLES TO
SELF-DETERMINATION AND OF THE SPEEDY GRANTING OF INDEPENDENCE TO C0~ONIAL COUNTRIES
AND PEOPLES FOR THE EFFECTIVE GUARANTEE AND OBSERVANCE OF HUMAN RIGHTS' REPORTS OF
THE SECRETARY-GENERAL (continued)

AGENDA ITEM 921 ELIMINATION OF ALL FORMS OF RACIAL DISCRIMINATION (continued)

(a) REPORT OF '1'HE COMMITTEE ON THE ELIMINA'rION OF RACIAL DISCRIMINNr ION

(b) STATUS OF THE INTERNATIONAL CONVENTION ON THE SUPPRESSION AND PUNISHMENT OF
THE CRIME OF APARTHEID: REPORT OF THE SECRETARY-GENERAL

(c) QlJESTION OF FINANCING THE EXPENSES OF THE MEM8ERS OF 'I'HE COMMITTEE ON THE
ELIMINATION OF RACIAL DISCRIMINATION: REPORT OF THE SECRET.\Rv-GENERAL

·Thi, Tt!nml is subject In 1,'lIrrtt.:lion Correclil,rlS should he ,ent under the ,ia:nalure nf • memhtr of the d\,:ll

Kalinn l:oncerned wllhin ortt w"k of rh, diJrt of pub/lwtlo" III the Chief of the Offidll Records Editing Sectmn.

mmn DC27~O, 2 United Nations PIIll•. and mcorporated In • copy of the re.:nrd

CorreclJllns will he iuued aRu lhe t.ld of the 'C551On, In I ~eplr.te l'udde for C'8ch COfilmiltrl"

8j-56001 05918 (E)

Distr. GENERAL
A/C.3/42/SR.7
14 OCtober 1987

ORIGINAL' ENGLISH

/ ...



A/C.3/42/SR.7
English
Page :1

The meeting was called to crder at 10.20 a.m.

AGENDA ITEM 87: IMPLEMENTATION 010' 'I'HE PROGRf'.Mt4.E OF 1\C'l'ION FOR THE SECOND DECADE TO
COMBAT RACISM AND RACIAL DISCRIMINATION: REP')R'l'S OF THE SECRETARY-GENERAL (A/42/3,
A/42/492, A/42/493) (continued)

AGENDA ITEM 91: IMPORTANCE OF THE UNIVERSAL REALIZATION OF THE RIGHT OF PEOPLES TO
SELF-DETERMINATION AND OF THE SPEEDY GRANTING GF INDEPENDENCE TO COLONIAL COUNTRIES
AND PEOPLES FOR THE EFFECTIVE GUARANTEE AND OaSERVANCE OF HUMAN RIGHTS: REPORTS OF
THE SECRETARY-GENERAL (A/42/448 and Add.l) (co'lt.inued)

AGENDA ITEM 92: ELIMINATION OF ALL FORMS OF RACIAL DISCRIMINATION (A/42/18,
A/42/449, A/42/4611 and CorLl and Add. 1) (continue~)

(a) REPORT OF THE COMMITTEE ON THE F.LIMINATJQN OF RACIAL DISCRIMIN~TION

(b) S'1'ATUS OF THE INTERNATIONAL CONVENTION at! "'HE SUPPRESSION AND PUNISHMENT OF
THE CRIME OF APARTHEID: REPORT OF THE SECRETARY-GENERAL

(c) QUESTION OF FINANCING THE EXPENSES OF THE MEMBERS OF THE COMMITTEE ON THE
ELIMINATION OF RACIAL DISCRIMINATION: RP,PORT OF THE SECRETARY-GENERAL

1. Ms. NYMAN (Finland), speaking on behalf of tht five Nordic countries, said
that racism and racial discrimination were 3 ~niversal phenomenon. The primary
responsibility for abolishing them lay with Governments themselves, within cheir
respective areas of national jurisdiction, but strong and concerted international
action was also required.

2. The Nordic countries considered it was altogether appropriate that apartheid
should bp listed first in the Programme of Action for the Second Decade to Combat
Racism and Racial Discrimination, since it was the most evil form of racial
discrimination, using rep:ession and violence to ~eep the white minority in power.
The incidence of detentions and torture by the South African police and military
had increased, and in some cases the victims D~d been children.

3. In the communique issued at their meeting in Helsinki in September 1987, the
Foreign Ministers of the Nordic countries had expressed their concetn ~bout

developments in South Africa since the May 1987 elections. The prolonged state of
emergency, press censorship and nurn';!rous arrests of opponents of apartheid
particularly members of trade unions and the United Democratic Front, had
exacerbated the situation. The Nordic Foreign Ministers had stressed the
importance of t.he support of the international C'ommunity to all those wh v had been
imprisoned and persecuted on account of their resistance to apartheid.

4. In accordance with the joint Nordic Prograillrne of Action 3.gainst South Africa,
the Nordic countries would contlnue to step lip their efforts to contribute to the
early abolition of the apartheid system by peaceful means. Pending the imposition
of mandatory sanctions by the Security Council, the Nordic countries had taken

/ ...



A/C.3/42/SR•7
English
Page 3

(Ms. Nyman, Finland)

further unilateral measures, including a trade boycott of South Africa, which they
hoped would lead to more comprehensive international action. At the same time,
they would intensify their contingency planning for the e&rly implementation of
possible decisions by the Security Council. They would also increase humanitarian
assistance to southern Africa and development assistance to th~ Front-Line ~tates

in order to reduce their dependence on South Africa.

5. It was regrettable that the Committee on the Elimination of All Forms of
Racial Discrimination (CERD) had had to cancel its summer 1986 session. The Nordic
countries appealed to States Parties to the International Convention on the
Elimination of All Forms of Racial Di~crimin&t.on to honour their obligations under
the Convention and pay their outstnnding contributions so that financial suppc t
would be sufficient to enable CERD to fulfil its mandate in future. CERD must also
concinue its efforts to rationalize its own working methods. Th~ Nordic countries
hoped that all interested delegations would be involved in drafting the resolution
concerning the report of CERD in an effort to reach a satisfactory consensus, the
resolution should reflect the views of all States parties and should not include
divisive and extraneous issues.

6. Education, teaching and training were among the most important weapons in the
fight against racism and racial discrimination. Efforts shOUld be made to produce
teaching materials more specifically focused on racial discrim~nation. It was also
important to engage the media in the fight against racial discrimination, and the
activities of the Department of Public Information in that respect were commendable.

7. Miss AIOUAZE (Algeria) said that the efforts made by the United Nations since
its establishment to promote human rights and the dignity of the individual as
cardinal universal valv~s were still being und~rmined by the persistence of
shamefUl racial theories. Racism and racial dlscrimination, which whether covertly
0r overtly affected the lives and dignity of individuals or entire peoples, were
among the most serious and widespread violations of human rights.

8. The victims of those pr~ctices were innume~able. Migrant workers and members
of their families were a favourite tar~et. AttitUdes of indifference, complacency
or leniency must be overcome so that the ~ignity and security of migrant workers
and their families could be ensured. The system of apartheid, for its part, could
not be reformed, it must be dismantled. Events had amply demonstrated that the
only viable course was to impose comprehensive mandatory sactions under Chapter VII
of the Charter. solidarity and support must also be extellded to the struggle of
the South African people, under the leadership of ANC, their sole legitimate
representative, to regain their freedom and dignity.

9. Zionism too was based on oppression and discrimination. The Palestinian
people, under the leadership of PLO, its sole legitimate representative, was
striving to win its inalienable right to self-determination and the establishment
of an independent State. The organization of an international peace conference on
the Middle East, in which all the parties concerned, inclUding PLO, would
participate on an equal footing, was the only way of achieving a just and lasting
peace in the Middle East.

I ...



A/C.3/42/SR.7
Bnglish
Page 4

(Miss Aiouaze, Algeria)

10. Ever since the adoption of resolution 1514 (XV), the United Nations had upheld
the liberation strUCJgle of peoples refusing to be denied their future. The full
attainment of the right of peoples to self-determination was still being
obstructed, however, largely by the attitude of colonial regimes which Ilereisted in
keeping entire peoples enslaved. No pre-conditions could be attached to the
implementation of Security Council resolution 435 (1978), only its strict
implementation would satisfy the inalienable claim of the Namibian peoplQ to
self-determination and independence. The international community must rise to its
responsibilities and support the liberation struggle of the Namibian people under
the leadership of S~PO, their 80le authentic representative, and also support the
Front-Line States in the face of South Africa's dest&bilizing manoeuvres.

11. Despite the full commitment of the! internatic••al community to a peaceful and
just solution of the question of Western Sahara, there had been a disturbing
increase in the foreign military presence in the Territory. The African peace plan
set forth in resolution AHG/Res.104 (XIX) of the Assembly of Heads of State and
Government of the Organization of African unity had been endorsed by the
international community. Algeria s~pported fully the efforts of the current
Chairman of the OAU and the secretary-General of the United Nations to promote the
exercise by the Saharan people of their right to self-determ~nation and
independence through the organization of a referendum supervisp.d by the United
Nations and the OAU.

12. Mercenarism posed a serious threat to international peace and security and
afflicted peoples strUCJgling for their national liberation and economic and
political independence. The appointment, by the Commission on Hummn Rights, of a
Special Rapporteur on the question of mercenarism would help define the dimensions
of the problem and promote the resumption of codification exercises in other bodies.

13. The report of the Secret~ry-Generalon the ilnplementation of the Programme of
Action for the Second Decade to Combat Racism and Racial Discrimination showed that
activities had been largely retrospective in nature. The draft plan of activities
for the period 1990-1993 did not make sufficient provision for measures to combat
apartheia. The success of the Second Decade was closely dependent on efforts in
all the complementary spheres covered by the Programme of Action. The organizatjon
of studies and seminars was given undue importance among the activitie~ for the
period 1990-1991. Above and beyond mere verbal condemnation, the valu6 of the
human person must be reasserted. The results achieved so far demonstrated the need
to reconsider the activities planned. ?riority must be given to the implementation
of ongoing, forceful international measures for the elimination of racism and
racial discrimination in all its forms, particularly the most virulent forms.

14. The Committee on the Elimination of Racial Discrimination had done useful work
since its establishment. Everything m~st be done to enable it to carry out the
mandate entrusted to it. The States Parties to the lnternational Convention on the
Elimination of All Forms of Racial Discrimination must intensify their efforts.
The best guarantee of CERD's authority was respect for its mandate under the
Convention.

/ ...



A/C.3/42/SR.7
Engli.h
Page 5

15. Mr. KOUNKOU (Congo) said that, in adopting General Assembly resolution 41/104,
the U~ed Nations had male an immense contribution to the attainment of the
objectives of the Second Deoade to Combat Raoism and Racial Di.orimination.
Although most States condemned racism, it p.r.i.ted in many countri.s. Official
proclamations n~twithstanding, the sham.ful .xploitation of foreign work.rs and
marginalization of minoriti•• and migrant work.rs and th.ir childr.n continued.
State. found refuge in .ilence or in the principle of exolusive compet.nc. ov.r
their inter~al affairs. The international oommunity must continue its .fforts and
co-ordinate its action to eliminate tacis.• particubrly thlOUgh public .ducation
and information. All States Members of the united Nation. must undertake to
mobilize even greater reROurces, including financial reaource., for the
implementation of the PrOylamme of Action for the Second Decade to Combat Raci.m
and Racial Discrimination.

16. Twenty-seven years after the adoption of the Declaration on the Granting of
Independence to Colonial Countries and Peoples, Africa and the international
community were still trying to free them.elve. of the la.t bastion of coloniali.m
on that continent. South Africa, encouraged and .upport.d by powerful Western
allies, continued to defy the international community by occupying Namibia
illegally. In the spring of 1987, tue international community had tak.n bitter
note of the United Statea veto in the security Council on a draft r.solution the
sub.tance of which had earlier won the support of the United State. Congr••••
South Africa had taken advantage of the situation and renewed it. oppo.ition to the
implementation of Security Council re.olution 435 (1978), the basis for any
settlement of the question of Namibia, and serious uncontrolled violation. of human
rights persisted in the Territory.

17. Sout~ Africa continued to be a source of .eriou. t.n.ion for Stat•• of
80uthern Africa. Apartheid and an aggressive colonial policy lay at thtt basis of
South Africa's repression against the majority of the South African people and
.ggre.~ion against neighbouring St.tes. Within South Africa a r'gim. of
intolerdnce and prejudice had .radicated all the fundamental right. of the black
popUlation, as was Q·!monsttated by the dram.tic h.ar Ings held .t Harar. during the
International Confer'9nce on Children, Reprl,s.ion .nd the Law in A2arth.id South
Africa, yet the black majority was determined to take control of it. future and
livQ in freedom, whatever the price.

18. The victory of the South African people we. inevitable, d.spit. the d.laying
tactics and the -engagement- of powerful allie. on the .ide of Pr.toria. The
Pretoria authorities must Immediately .bolitlh aputheid, rel•••• Nelson Mand.la an4
.11 political prisoners 8.na legalize ANC, and negotiate with repre.entative. of the
black majority and Douth African democr.tic force.. Th. Afri~an continent wa•
• t.pping up its initiatives to that end. From 25 to 31 May 1987, on the initiative
of the Gov.rnment·of Congo, an international literary .ympo.ium again.t aparth.id
had been held at Brazzavill., bringing together 400 deleq'~'. from various
countries and international organizations and culminating •.1 the .dopUon of the
Bra.zaville Declaration. The Africa Fund .et up at Harar. by the Mov.m.nt of
Non-Aligned Countries had also become operational, by May 1987 it had already
attracted SUS 110 million, including 200 million crA franc. from the Congol•••
people.

/ ...



A/C.3/42/sn.7
Enqlish
Page 6

(Mr. Kounkou, Congo)

19. Although the divestment begun by some western firms was commendable, the fact
that their olace was being taken by other European or United States compar.ies was a
source of great concern. Pressure must be stepped up for the final abolition of
apartheid. The Boers had already undergone peychological defeat alld the myth of
the bunker mentality had been dispelled. The recent aeeting between
representatives of various segments of the white population and ANC was encouraging
and it was to be hoped that such meetings «Quld become a permanent feature so that,
in unity, South Africans might build a multiracial, just and democratic
post-apartheid South Africa.

20. Ms. RAHMAN (Bangladesh) said that the Incral progress of humanity should have
already bliminated racism from the face of the earth and it was unfortunate that
the Committee was discussing an issue which should have long since ceased to exist.
Her country's position on the issue was well known. Its Constitution prohibited
any torm of racism :1Od racial discr imination. Bang13desh upheld tile pr inciples of
equality, human (lgnity and self-determinaeion and its Government pursued with
determination policies designed to root out the evils of racism 3nd racial
discrimination.

21. Although the situation in South Pf :ica had been condemned repeatedly, the
bloodshed and Buffering oZ the overwhelming African majority in that ~ountry

continued. Many expected reforms in the institutionalized system of apar~ in
South Africa. That system could not be reformed, however, it must be abolished.
Equalit f peopl~s ar.d races must prevail in South Africa in order for the
major it) J exercise the.i" inalienable dghts of full access to their land and full
citizenship of their country. The "bantustanization" policy of the South African
Government, which ooug~t to isolate the African people in enclaves and deprive them
of full citizenship in their own land, was yet another example of Pretoria's
shameful activities.

22. Bangladesh maintained no relations with the pariah Government of South Africa
and, despite the constraints that it faced, was anxious to make its due
contribution towards the elimination of racism and racial discrimination. It
continued to believe that the independence of Namibia must be achieved on the basis
of United Nations r.esolutions, particularly Security Council resolutions 385 (1976)
and 435 (1978). It commended and saluted the leadership of S~PO.

23. The situation of Palestine was yet another example of contempt for human
dignity and SUbjugation of an entire people which could not be allowed to
continue. Israel must take heed and respond to the urges of global public opinion,
or forfeit its right to be called civilized. The Palestinians must be allowed to
exarcise their right to determine their own destiny and establish their own State.
Similarly, th~ peoples of Afghanist~n and Kampuchea continued to be denied their
right of self-determination and foreign troops must be withd~awn from their lands.

24. her delegati~n appreciated the concerted efforts of the Secretary-General and
the Comn1ttee on the Elimination of Racial Discrimination (CERD) to implement the
Proqramme of Action for the Second Decad~ to Combat Racism and Racial

/ ...



A/C.3/42/SR.7
BngUsh
Page 7

(Ms. Rahm.n, Bangladesh)

Discrimir.ation. With ;re91~rd to CBRD's programme of work in 1986, she emphasized
the importance of the full. implementation of econCJlDic sanctions against Pretoria by
all Member States. Bhe also urged all States to fulfil their financial obligations
to CERD in order to enablo it to continue its work and ensure the effective
implementation of the Convention on the Elimination of Racial Discrimination.

~5. Her delegatio~ suppocted fully the content of paragraph 16 of the
Secre~ary-General's repor:t (A/42/493), concerning the preparation of teaching
mater iaJ s and teaching ai,ls to promote awareness and understanding of human rights
at the primary and secon<hry levels of e<lu(.· Lon. I t also attached special
importance to the statement made by Mr. Martenson, Undtir-Secretary-General for
Human Rights, regarding medi~ involvement in the dissemination of information. The
role of the media in helping shape pUbl~c opinion in support of United Nations aims
in the area of human [i~hts was significant.

26. Mr. CONSTANTINESCU CRomania) said that 'is country's position on racism,
racial discrimination ~nd apartheid was well known. Romania condemned firmly the
polici~s and practices of racism and racial discrimination and supported the
liberation movemenLS of peoples struggling for a free and dignified Ilfe. His
delegation noted with concer.n that thp. principal objectives set forth in many
United Nations resolutions, declarations and proclamations, as well as in the
Programmes of Action for ·he two United Nations Decades for Action to Combat Racism
and Racial Discrimination, had not been attained. Millions of human beings
continued to be victims of various forms of racism and racial discrimination.

27. Nowhere in the world were racism and racial aiscriminrtion so brutal and
blatant as in South Africa and the situation in that country had recently become
even worse. Romania condemned indignantly the crimes committed against the African
people by the racist r~gime of South Africa, whose policies were a flagrant
violation of the United Nations Charter and a brutal negation of the most
elementary human rights. While condemnation of.~artheid was universal, however,
action consistent with chat condemnation was needed in order to eradicate
apartheid. His delegation believed that actions by the United Nations and the
international community to combat racism, racial discrimination and apartheid
should include measures aimed at improving economic, political, social and cultural
conditions in order to remove inequalitieA in employment, nutrition, health,
housing '!Ind education. It also hoped th"t all countries, including tl.~ permanent
members of the Security C<..:lnC'il, would support the adoption of mandatory sanctions
against South Africa as a means of forcing South Africa to end its policy of
apartheid, its illegal occupation of Namibia and its armed aggression Against
neighbouring States.

28. His delegation believed that it was necessary to step up action to implement
the Programme of Actiun for the Second Decade to Combat Racism and Racial
Discrimination, especially in view of the fact that the principal objectives of the
First Decade had not been attained. It hoped that the draft resolution on
items 87, 91 and 92 would give new impetus to efforts to implement the Programme of
Action and that the Committee's debate and the resolutions to be ·adopted by the
General Assembly would help speed up the process of cOftlplete eradication ,~ racism,
racial discr imination and apartheid.

/ ...



A/C.3/42/SR.7
English
Page 8

29. Mr. BAANETT (Jam&ica) pledged his delegation's support to the eff\)rts of th~

new Director of the Centre for Human Rights, Mr. Marten.on, particul4rly those
aimed at expanding the Centre's involvement in training and informatiun activities
which were important elements of the Programme of Action for the Second Decade t.O

Combat Rbcism and Racial Discrimination.

30. Racism was not confined to any particular country or region~ rather, such
tendencies were almost endemi.c in multi-ethnic sanieties where the struggl~s for
economic, social and eventual political domination of one ethnic group erupted as
racial quarrels bnd CG'flicts. The most glaring example was South Africa, where
raciam and racial paranoia had been enshrined in a system of oppression and human
rights violations.

31. Although apartheid had affronted humanity'S deepest instincts of g~ness, the
international community, particularly those who continued to prop up the South
African regime, had failed to end that system and should be prepared to bear the
consequences if it continUed to fail to act. The unconditional release of
Nelson Mandela and all political prisoners and the recognition of all political
parties, together with the implementation of comprehensive mandatory Hanc~.tons,

were the only options for a peaceful solution.

32. One of the tasks of the united Nati~ns was to devise international laws that
were nationally applicable. One outstanding example ~f the achievement of
international agreement on such norms was the adoption and ratification by 124
States of the International Convention on the Elimination of All Forms of Racial
Discrimination. Howev~r, Jamaica was concecned that the Committee on the
Elimination of Racial Discrimination, which was charged with monitoring the
implementa~ion of the Convent~on, was being crippled by the inability of some
States to meet their financial obligations. His deleq:~ion urged those States to
correct the situation.

33. His delegation considered that broader support for the International
Convention on the Suppression and Punishment of the Crime of Apartheid would
indicate to the South African regime the attitude of the international community on
the issue. It hoped that countries which had not yet done so would see the virtue
of upporting the Convention. He noted that, according to the report of the
Secretary-GeneraJ (A/42/449), a number of the reports due under the Convention were
still outstanding. His delegation ho~ed that a remedy could be found ~hat would
~elp to ease the burden on Stat~s ana allow them to meet their reporting
obliga~ions.

34. During the Second Decade to Combat Racism and Racial Discrimination, the
United Nations and national Governments had been able to focus world attention on
the dangers of racial discrimination, especially &S practised in South Africa. His
deleqation believed that the activities contained in the plan of activities for the
second h~lf of the Second Decade, 1990-1993, were all useful and that special
attention should be given to programmes concerning teaching materials to combat
racism and racial discrimination, as well as to the problems of minority groups,
inclUding migrant workers and their children.

I ...



A/e. 3/42/SR.-;
Eng'_iah
Page 9

(Mr. Barnett, JamaiS!)

35. Refernng to item 92, he said that the United Nations could be proud of its
past endeavours towards ending colonialism. However, the Organization's efforts
must continue until South Africa's oppressive rule over Namibia had been
terminated. Jamaica had called repeatedly for Security Council action under
Chapter VII of the Charter to ensure the implementation of resolut\on 435 (1978),
and had reaffirmed the legitimacy of the struggle of SWAPO.

36. In the Middle East, the rights of the Palestinian people were still being
denied. Similarly, foreign forces still prevented the Afghan and Kampuchean
peo~les from exercising fully their right to self-determination, and should be
wittolirawn.

37. The elimination of racism and racial discrimination was contingent on each
person's belief in the equality of his fellow man. He hoped that it would be
possible, through education and exposure to many different cultures, to influence
current and future generations with the view to eradicating notions and doctrines
th~t perpetuated inequality.

38. Mr. AGUlLAR (Venezu~la) said that, with all the excellent documents once again
provided by the Secretariat, no one could say that there was any lack of
materials. On the contrary: all that could be said had been said and there was
little to add. Nevertheless, although representatives might be repeating
themselves, as they did year after year, and reaching the same conclusions, he felt
that the repetition of effort was absolutely necessary because, as history showed,
ideas gradually penetrated. A look at the early 'lctivities of the United Nations
showed the progress that had been made. Early General Assembly and Security
Council resolutions had been rather timid and lacked the clarity and determination
of those bodies' present-day pronouncements. Member States had annually called
attention to the importance of solving the problems of racism and racial
discrimination and the need for progress in implementing not only General Assembly
and Security Council resolutions but also the various international instruments
adopted by the United Nations. Some progress had been made in implementing the
provisiolls of those instruments, through a system of monitoring and the
consider~tion of States Members' periodic reports. That constan~ effort, although
it might sometimes appear unnecessary and repetitive, was of the utmost
importance. As a multiracial country in which various ethnic groups lived in
harmony together, Venezuela realized that constant vigilance was necessary to
eliminate any vestiges of racial discrimination and any possibility of ideas, views
and prejudices that were alien to the country's principles.

39. Since full implementation of the existing internation~l conventions was more
important than any new legislation, his delegation noted with satisfaction from the
report on the i~ _dmentation of the Programme of Action for the Second Decade to
Combat Racism and Racial Discrimination (A/42/493) the action taken to implement
the object\ves of the Second Decade and also the propo~ed plan of activities for
the second half of the Decade. In that connection, his country attached special
importance to education, teaching and training. It welcomed the efforts made to
ensure the wide dissemination of all materials connected with the fight against

/ ...



A/C.3/42/SR.7
English
Ptlge 10

(Mr. Aguilar, Venezuela)

racism and racial discrimination and the work done in seminars, meetings and
symposia, and was pleased to note that such activities would be continued in the
second half of the Second Decade.

40. In combating racism and r~cial discrimination, special attention must be paid
to the abhorrent situation in South Africa, since apartheid was the worst form of
racial discrimination. Despite all the United Nations activities a r ' decisions,
the apartheid regime still persisted. He reaffirmed his country's absolute
condemnation of that system and its steadfast support for action under Chapter VII
of the United Nations Charter to compel an obviously reluctant Government to comply
with its international obligations and dismantle the aparthei~ system. Security
Council resolution 581 (1986), set forth the essential prerequiRites for the
establishment of a democratic non-raciAl society based on self-determination,
majority rule and universal suffrage in a united and non-fragmented South Africa.
~he only effective means of achieving them was to impose comprehensive, mandatory
sanctions against South Africa. The arms embargo imposed by the Security Council,
and the measures adopted by individual States were clearly inSUfficient.

41. Namibia, too, still suffered from Pretoria's illegal presence, desp1.te the
detailed plan put forth in Security Council resolution 435 (1978), which had failed
to be implemented because of certain countries' insistence on linking Namibian
independence with other extraneous issues. The deteriorating situation in Namibia
called for energetic action by the united Nations. He reaffirmed &\is country's
support for and solidarity with the South west Africa People's Organization (S~PO).

42. The problems confronting the Committee on the Elimination of Racial
Discrimination (CERD) warranted very careful attention. In its ~resent financial
situation, it was difficult for CERD to function properly and the present status of
contributions by States par~ies was very unsatisfactory. As of 1 September 1987,
there had still been an enormous sum outstanding. Venezuela, for its part, had
paid its contribution for the current year. It was important to ensure that the
body which monitored implementation of the Convention was able to function as it
should and he t~usted that the Committee would adopt a resolution appealing to
States parties to the Convention to give CERD the necessary support. Despite the
current difficulties facing the United Nations, every effort shoula. ~e made to
ensure at least that CERD's work was not interrupted.

43. Turning to agenda item 91, the right to self-determination was fundamental to
the fll11 exercise of a whole range of civil, political, economic, social and
cultural rights. It was well known that in the few Territories that were still
under foreign or colonial domination, the humAn rights situation left much to be
desired. Only an end to dependency and a chance to exercise their right to choose
thei.r own destiny, their own form of government and their own road to economic and
social development would put An end to the daily violations of elementary human
rights in those Territories.



"'/e. 3/42/.'R. 7
English
Page 11

(Mr. "'guilar, Venezuela)

44. While he had said nothing that had not been said before and had no new ideas
to offer for the speedy solution of the issues arising under the tPlee items now
before the Committee, he fell that it was essential to devote time to those
considerations and to study the important documents prepared by the Secretariat
cuncerning matters 0f vital importance on which depended not only the well-being of
the peoples whose human rights were being violated but also peace and security.
Discrimination and persecution of minorities had led frequently to internal
conflict, aId racism and racial discriminalion often threatened regional and
internationa~ peace and security. The situation in South "'frica, Namibia dnd the
Middle East, where racial discrimination and human rights violations were a
commonplace, testified to the link between the protection of human rights and the
preservation of peace.

The meeting rose at 11.55 a.m.


